Glen Alpine Board of Alderman

October 13%, 2025
Meeting minutes

Present: Mayor Lewis, S. Perkins. L. Boone, R. Scott, J. Miller and Clerk Carswell Absent:
Attorney Denton

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Michelle Lewis asked everyone to approve the agenda. J. Miller made motion.

Motion to approve the minutes was made, seconded, and approved unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mayor Michelle Lewis called for the approval of the last meeting's minutes. J. Miller made
motion.

Motion to approve the minutes was made, seconded, and approved unanimously.

APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT REPORTS

Mayor Michelle Lewis called for the approval of the Department Reports. J. Miller made
motion.

Motion to approve the minutes was made, seconded, and approved unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Mayor Michelle Lewis called for public comments:

Gail Vess, she is a town resident and is requesting that the board approve the ordinance to
allow goid carts on the town streets.

Stan Benedict- gave an update on the park and compliments on how good the town looks.

1)Curt Willis-Code Enforcement Update-see attached docurnents

2)Phillipe Rosse- ASI Solutions-see attached documents

3)Carol Avery- Lowdermilk, Church & Co. 24-25 Audit Review, she noted she wasn’t going
over the audit in detail but she will answer questions if anyone has them. She explained the
budget amendment process and that just because money is in the bank doesn’t mean it can be
spent. The money is available, but the board has to request and approve a budget amendment
for items that were not budgeted for prior to spending it.

4)Rice Street, R. Scott- he says the road is in bad shape and needs to be fixed. The road is a
private street so Powell Bill money cannot be used. R. Scott made a motion to spend $500 for
the repairs. J. Miller & S. Perkins asked if the repair will be permanent or will it continue to
happen again. L. Boone stated with it being a private road we need something in writing from
each of the residents that use the road.S. Perkins said she thinks our attorney suggested we
get something signed from the residents that it would be a one time thing. L. Boone made a



motion to table until November meeting.

5)Copies of Checks, R. Scott- he thinks the board should see what checks are being written
monthly and would like to see copies of all the accounts payable checks. S. Perkins said she
suggested that all the board members be on the bank accounts but nobody agreed with her.
She thinks all board members should be able to sign and look at checks. Clerk Carswell said
copies of checks with our bank account information floating around seems a little concerning
but she can ask the bank. She stated that all checks have to be signed not only by her but the
Mayor or Mayor Pro-tem. S. Perkins asked R. Scott if he had a reason for wanting to see the
checks.R. Scott said ARP money was spent and nobody knows where it went or who got it.
He said that was before Crystal was here. Clerk Reed said any board member is welcome to
come look through any checks they want at any time. But she can print a summary from
Quickbooks each month. S. Perkins stated our recordkeeping is non-existent. The state
already told us that. She asked if there is a petty cash fund. Clerk Carswell said yes she does
and the only reason she keeps petty cash is for change when someone pays a citation. She
keeps receipts in the cash box and it is also audited. R. Scott made a motion to get a list of
checks in the agenda packets. Passed 4-0

6)Gas Purchase to be in Glen Alpine, R. Scott- he wants all gas for town vehicles to be
purchased at Thrifty Mart. He thinks driving to Quality Mart is wasting time and money.
Each time they go get gas in Carbon City they stop and get a free coffee from Sheetz and its a
waste of time. L. Boone said as far as the return, we get it no matter where gas is purchased.
Clerk Reed said we have a fleet account with Quality Oil which keeps track of how much gas
is purchased and who bought it. It helps for recordkeeping and accountability. We have an
account with Thrifty Mart and the Police Dept buys the majority of their gas there unless they
are closed which is another reason why we need to keep another account elsewhere for night
shift emergency personnel. She told R. Scott he could have an account with Thrifty Mart if he
wanted, he just needed to make a separate one for Public Works and verify his purchases. L.
Boone asked if Carbon City is in the ETJ.Kirk Penley and Clerk Reed said it is still in the fire
district. A. Marlowe said the point of having fleet cards is for accountabilty and to make sure
employees aren’t putting gas in their own vehicles. M. Lewis said it seems that having both
gas accounts is the better option so its just down for discussion so if everyone is ok with that
we’ll move on.

7)State of Emergency Preparation, L. Boone- one year after Hurricane Helene happened and
we remember how we were all caught off guard and were not prepared. He made a motion
that during a State of Emergency that it is mandatory for each Dept Head to be at the Town of
Glen Alpine. Pass 4-0

8)Fall Festival Update, A. Marlowe- he said the Fire Dept worked and prepped for the
festival this year and he is asking if the board wants the Fire Dept to be in charge of it next
year. He said he thought it was one of the best festivals we’ve had. S. Perkins said her only
suggestion is for traffic to be rerouted next year. A. Marlowe agreed.L. Boone made a motion
that the Fire Dept is in charge of the Fall Festival 2026. Pass 4-0R. Scott said after the
festival, he came back out and the breaker boxes were open and door was gone on one of
them.A. Marlowe said he does want to address an issue that happened regarding the Public
Works Dept not helping with set up, trash pick up etc. He is asking since his volunteers
showed up to help, can he pay those individuals that helped to make the festival a success.
Some stayed the whole time, some just stayed a few hours but they did what Public Works
did in years past and they were paid.R. Scott said he has a response to that, he said one of his
‘employees was falsely accused of starting fires and he wasn’t loaning out his employees to
someone who had falsely accused them.M. Lewis interrupted and said we need to stay on
track. Gavel used M. Lewis asked how many employees worked on Saturday. A. Marlowe
said he had a total of 11 personnel. M. Lewis said we could compromise and pay them what



the Public Works guys would have been paid for 12 hours.S. Perkins asked for a detail of
who worked. She asked if Public Works Dept has been required to work in the past. M. Lewis
said the only thing that was different is that the two guys were new and had just started and
the other two employees were out on sick leave. A. Marlowe said during the festival several
of his personnel were still having to run calls so having additional calls would have been
helpful.S. Perkins said she agrees that help should have been provided. She added that next
year that needs to be planned and additional volunteers be there to help.L.. Boone asked if we
can leave the motion as is and next A. Marlowe ¢an communicate amongst other departments
for assistance. Board asked if A. Marlowe will provide information of who worked and how
much they will decide what to pay them.

9M. Lewis said it is not on the agenda but Reid Scott wanted to introduce his 2 new
employees for Public Works. R. Scott, Cary Stephenson and Calvin Rhodes and they are
doing a bang up job.

10)Date for Christmas Breakfast, S. Perkins- Monday, December 22, 2025

11)Seating Arrangement for the Board, S. Perkins- she said we are the only board that seats
round table which makes it controversial. She thinks we need to reconfigure the seating
arrangement. S. Perkins made a motion to try our best to make the tables straight instead of
round table. Pass 4-0

12)Christmas Decorations, M. Lewis- she is volunteering to take this on and will bring some
numbers to the next meeting.

13)Park Update-BRTA, Beth Heile- the ribbon cutting is almost ready to be scheduled for the
Glen Alpine Downtown Park, she said the PARTF Grant was not approved so the board
decided to go ahead with the park without the addition of playground equipment for now. The
final inspection was done and final preps are being done. DOT added the crosswalks at no
charge. New picnic tables are on the way along with trash cans. She said the signage will
highlight downtown areas and they are similar for each small town in the county. L.. Boone
made the motion to give Burke River Trail permission to go ahead and install the signage for
Glen Alpine Downtown Park. Pass 4-0

Closed Session, Personnel 143-318.11M. Lewis asked Clerk Carswell to leave the closed
session.



